
 

EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS 

1 If you hear the alarm, leave the building immediately. 
2 Follow the green signs. 
3 Use the stairs not the lifts. 
4 Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 
 

 
If you require further information, please contact: Lizzie Rich 
Telephone: 01344 352253 
Email: elizabeth.rich@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
Published: 30 September 2016 

  

 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

Local Countryside Access Forum 
Tuesday 11 October 2016, 7.00 pm 
Board Room, Second Floor, Easthampstead House, Town Square, 
Bracknell. 

To: Local Countryside Access Forum 

Michael Abbott (Chairman) 
Colin Bird 
Councillor Michael Brossard 
John Deakin 
Councillor Alvin Finch 
Hugh Fitzwilliams 
Richard Mosses 
Peter Radband 
Jenny Yung 

 

ALISON SANDERS 
Director of Corporate Services 
 



 

 

Local Countryside Access Forum 
Tuesday 11 October 2016, 7.00 pm 
Board Room, Second Floor, Easthampstead House, Town 
Square, Bracknell. 

AGENDA 
 Page No 

1. Welcome   

2. Apologies   

3. Minutes of Last Meeting and Matters Arising  5 - 10 

4. Membership and Recruitment   

  New draft recruitment leaflet 
 

11 - 12 

5. Meetings, Conferences and Training   

  LAF Chairs Meeting 

 Disabled Ramblers 

 PROW Training 
 

 

6. News from Huddle   

7. Access Improvement Works   

  PROW maintenance / improvement 
 S106 funded improvements to parks / open spaces 
 SANGs improvements 
 Cycleway improvements linked to developments 

 

13 - 14 

8. ROWIP Review   

9. LCAF Annual Report   

10. Site Visits   

  Swinley Forest 

 Wellington College 
 

 

11. Report from Members around the Table   

12. Any Other Business   

13. Public Question Time   

 (Maximum 10 Minutes) 
 

 

14. Date of Next Meeting   

 14 March, 2017, 7pm, Function Room, Easthampstead House 
3 October 2017, 7pm, Function Room, Easthampstead House 

 

 



Unrestricted 

LOCAL COUNTRYSIDE ACCESS FORUM 
1 MARCH 2016 
7.00  - 9.20 PM  

 
Present: 
Members: 
Michael Abbott 
Colin Bird 
Hugh Fitzwilliams 
David Lindop 
Peter Radband (Chairman) 
 
In attendance: 
Graham Pockett, Parks & Countryside Development Officer 
Robert Solomon, Ranger (Countryside and PROW) 

 
Apologies for absence were received from: 
Councillor Michael Brossard 
John Deakin 
Richard Mosses 
Jenny Yung 
Rose Wicks, Parks & Countryside Projects Officer 

15. Welcome  

Chairman Peter Radband welcomed members and officers to the meeting. 

16. Minutes of Last Meeting and Matters Arising  

The minutes of the meeting on 6 October 2015 were approved as a true record, after 
the amendment of the following: 
 
Minute 3 
‘in relation to promoting the interests of horse rising…’ be corrected to horse riding 
 
Matters arising 
The mapping project for defibrillators was an ongoing task, and was being developed.  
 
The Beating the Boundary Walk had been altered, and had changed into a series of 
short walks during a week rather than one long walk. The new proposals also 
included cyclists and cycle routes. The walk routes explored paths and cut-throughs 
not obvious on maps. These walks would take place on the week beginning 3 
October 2016, and would include a walk or cycle in each parish of the borough. It was 
reported that more publicity around this event would be useful.  

17. Membership and recruitment  

It was reported to the group that membership of the LCAF was now up to 10, and it 
was recommended that LCAF groups should consist of between 10 and 22 members. 

3

Agenda Item 3



 

Members of the forum discussed ways of recruiting landowner, disabled and youth 
representatives onto the forum. One suggestion was that an National Union of 
Farmers representative be recruited onto the forum, who need not be a borough 
landowner. It was also suggested that the Bracknell Forest Access Group be 
approached.  
 
Mark Osman, Royal Farms Manager had been contacted to be on the Forum. Mark 
had thanked the Forum for their invitation, but had sadly not been able to join the 
group due to other commitments. 
 
There was reported to be the potential for a local training event for the Berkshire 
Local Authority LAFs, hosted and lead by Royal Borough of Windsor and 
Maidenhead. It was explained that this training would cover the basics of shared 
paths and the deregulation bill without going into legal detail. It was agreed that there 
would be an update on this at the next meeting.  
 
It was suggested that a brochure could be produced to target potential LCAF 
members, and that this brochure could be taken to venues to engage with the public, 
for example, at The Look Out.  
 

18. LAF related meetings/conferences  

Peter Radband had been to the Local Access Forum National Conference (South) 
and presented his feedback to the forum.  
 
The Conference had begun with a session from DEFRA on updates regarding 2026, 
including the new charge for legal proceedings of £750 for an appeal.  
 
There had also been a presentation from Land Access and Recreation Association 
(LARA) who maintain countryside Rights of Way for motorised activities. This 
presentation had featured a discussion on the use of communications and social 
media, and it was suggested that Communication and Marketing at Bracknell Forest 
could be used more to promote the Bracknell Forest LCAF. 
 
John Cuthbertson of the Disabled Ramblers (http://disabledramblers.co.uk/) had 
given a presentation on the issues and problems for disabled countryside users. One 
major barrier for countryside access users was reported to be small and inaccessible 
gates which are not big enough for wheelchairs or prams. It was suggested that 
wheelchair users could use another gate with RADAR key access. Alternatively, the 
bridle gates which measure 1.2m would be suitable in Bracknell Forest. Peter 
reported that he had asked John to do a session for Bracknell Forest LCAF to help 
members’ understanding.  
 
There had been a presentation from John Dennis from West Yorkshire on 
encouraging local authorities to work together to maintain public rights of way. One 
project working well in West Yorkshire was the ‘Greenline’; an urban jogging route to 
deter drug users from hanging around on public rights of way. It was suggested that 
although Bracknell’s public rights of way did not have a particular issue with drug 
users, a marked jogging route may encourage people to use the public rights of way 
and calm fears of getting lost. It was agreed that the possibilities of this would be 
looked into, and reported back on at the next meeting.  

(Action: Graham Pockett) 
 

There had also been a session on the recruitment into LAFs, and the problems 
putting people off. Peter reported that some LAFs used a long and formal interview 

4

http://disabledramblers.co.uk/


 

style process, and whilst Bracknell Forest’s process was not as bad, it could still do 
with improvement to encourage a diverse group of volunteers. This was particularly 
true if young people were to be attracted to the group. It was agreed that the forms of 
recruitment and publicity would be revisited.  

(Action: Graham Pockett) 

19. Communication  

Hugh Fitzwilliams reported on Huddle, Natural England’s Discussion forum, and 
informed the group that he had found it too complicated and laborious to use 
practically. There had been many issues with Huddle, including the fact that much of 
the information sent out was irrelevant to an urban setting such as Bracknell Forest, 
and that it was hard to navigate. Hugh therefore wished to resign from being the 
LCAF’s Huddle champion.  
 
David Lindop volunteered to try out Huddle instead of Hugh. It was explained that 
David would need to be set up on Huddle by Rose.  

(Action: Rose Wicks) 

20. Reports from Members round the table  

Colin Bird reported on the PROW improvement plan 2006-2016 which had entered 
its final year. It was heard that all of the actions on the plan had been achieved and 
that the 2017-2027 plan needed to be considered. LCAF was invited to have key 
input into the development of the next plan, which was a statutory requirement.  
 
David Lindop reported that he had presented the LCAF and the Beating the 
Boundary event to Winkfield Parish Council, who had been particularly enthusiastic 
about the walking event. David had also been speaking to members of the public at 
Swinley Forest to gauge their perception of horse access. There had been a general 
agreement that although access for riders is good in the forest, the car park had 
caused problems with people parking inconsiderately in a small space.  
 
Michael Abbott reported on the Ramblers work with bridges this year. There was a 
bridge on Binfield Footpath 2 which needed repair work. This work had been costed 
and was going to go ahead. 
 
Hugh Fitzwilliam reported on the SANGS land in the Warfield development, and was 
pleased to report that there was a surplus of SANGS land in the area. He commented 
that the challenge now was to connect the existing SANGS and for the council to 
designate PROWs to connect them.  
 
Peter Radband commented on the issues at Devil’s Highway, including poor car park 
access, poor gate security giving access to illegal raves, and the poor state of the 
Highway itself. It was reported that Graham Pocket had been in discussion with the 
Forestry Commission to address some of these issues already.  

21. Access Improvement Works  

Rob Solomon reported on the recent Access Improvement Works in the borough. 
Since the last meeting of LCAF, there had been the following developments to 
PROWs: 

 Scrub clearance and head cutting along Binfield footpath 9 up to Terrence 
Road South, which now offered good views 

 The building of a narrow boardwalk crossing along Warfield footpath 7 in the 
Malthill Road area, to avoid seasonal flooding 

5



 

 New footpath works along 300+ metres of the Eastern side of Bracknell 
footpath 22 

 A replacement of the kissing gate on Bracknell footpath 15 with a two-way 
pedestrian gate to allow better mobility scooter access 

 
Rob also reported on the Ramblers Big Path Watch which had run between July 2015 
and January 2016. The Big Path Watch had invited reports from members of the 
public to be submitted to Parks and Countryside, and a spreadsheet of faults, 
compliments and grid references had been submitted to Rob. Of the responses, 135 
had been negatives reporting mostly seasonal issues, but 260 had been positives 
complimenting the attractive views, flora and fauna, useful signage and more. Rob 
was very pleased to have had more positives than negatives, and the Chairman 
congratulated Rob and his team. The Big Path Watch was a one-off event, but Rob 
reported that he was looking to recruit volunteer inspectors for the twice yearly 
inspection of 80% of PROWs in the borough, and asked if LCAF members were 
interested in this.  
 
In Access Improvement Works for SANGs, the following developments had taken 
place since the last meeting: 

 New path had been installed at Horseshoe Lake 

 Horseshoe Lake’s car park had been extended and improved with marked out 
spaces 

 Bank repair work had taken place along the River Blackwater to combat bad 
erosion. This would be followed by resurfacing the path on the south side of 
the river 

 Garth Meadow/Anneforde Place bridge had been resurfaced including 
decorative panels installed in the balustrades by artist Circling the Square/ 

 A new path planned to link Manor Farm and Anneforde Place 

 Heather scraping to regenerate the heath at Englemere Pond 

 Scrub clearance from the reedbed within Englemere 

 Timline green entrance surface improvements at Longhill Park 
 
In Access Improvement Works for S106, there had been new pathways, bird and bat 
boxes, scrub clearance and a pond within Wick Hill woodland. Wick Hill was a small 
copse in between Lakeside and Warfield Road, with a good mix of trees. New 
signage had been introduced to encourage people to use the space.  

22. 2026 Cut-off for recording historic paths  

Graham Pockett reported on the 2026 cut-off date for recording historic paths, and 
mentioned that the work had been requested by Councillor Turrell to prevent a last 
minute rush in 2025-26.  
 
Graham commented that he was not expecting many historic paths to be declared as 
the borough was primarily made up of new towns and Crown Estate land. Larger 
County Councils would be affected more by this cut-off date than small unitaries. It 
was reported that Bracknell Town Council had brought up the cut-off date recently, 
and had received very limited response.  
 
Forum members asked whether there should be more publicity around the 
declaration, but it was agreed that with so many people already involved in searching 
historic documents, it was unlikely that anything would be missed. 
 
 

6



 

23. LCAF Annual Report  

The LCAF Annual Report was received and approved by the present Forum 
members, who sent their congratulations and thanks to Rose Wicks for her hard work 
on this.  

24. Site Visits  

Peter Radband reported that as Rose was under pressure in other areas, he had 
volunteered to organise the next LCAF site visit and proposed a visit to the Crown 
Estate Historic Sites. It was agreed that Peter should speak to John about this, and 
also to Councillor Brossard about the possibility of a site visit to Wellington.  

(Action: Peter Radband/John Deakin/Councillor Brossard) 
 

It was suggested that a visit to the Cabbage Hill site when completed would be 
interesting, and also to the Frost Folly SANG when completed. Forum members 
expressed an interest to see the link between the two new SANGs, possibly in Spring 
2017 or later.  

25. Public Question Time  

There were no questions from members of the public.  

26. Date of Next Meeting  

The next meeting was scheduled for 4 October 2016, 7pm in the Function Room, 
Easthampstead House. This date was subject to change due to Walks Week 
happening the same week.  
 

 
 
 
CHAIRMAN 

7



8



Help us to shape the future of parks, 
open spaces and public rights of way. 

Bracknell Forest 
Local Countryside 
Access Forum 

Contact 
Parks & Countryside Service 
Bracknell Forest Council 
Time Square 
Market Street 
Bracknell 
Berkshire RG12 1JD 
T: 01344 352000 
www.bracknell-forest.gov.uk/
localcountrysideaccessforumlcaf 

Copies of this document may be obtained in large 
print, easy read, Braille, on audio tape or in other 
languages. To obtain a copy in an alternative 
format, please telephone 01344 352000. 

Out and about in Swinley 
Forest 
In June 2016 we were fortunate to be given 
a guided tour of Swinley Forest by The 
Crown Estate. The visit, which started at 
The Look Out, was an eye opening 
experience! We were interested to learn 
just how complex the site is to manage, as 
it fulfils an enormous variety of roles.  

The forest, which covers 3000 acres, is a 
mecca for dog walkers and a major 
attraction for thrill seeking mountain bikers. 
It contains internationally important wildlife 
habitats, being part of the Thames Basin 
Heaths Special Protection Area and 
designated as a Site of Special Scientific 
Interest. We also saw one of the historic 
redoubts, which are military fortifications 
from Napoleonic times. 

Managing the masses who descend upon 
what is primarily a commercial forest so 
effectively has been a triumph for the 
foresters. Particularly when you factor in the 
requirement to protect the rare ground 
nesting birds (Nightjar, Woodlark and 
Dartford Warbler) that can be found there. 

Planting a variety of trees also helps to 
promote the forest’s long term resilience 
against factors such as forest fires and 
pests and disease. It was an intriguing visit 
of which we are most appreciative. 

Expression of interest 
Please complete this form and return to 
us (below) if you’d like to express your 
interest in finding out more about our 
forum. 

Name: 

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  

Contact no. / email: 

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  

Area of interest: 

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  

©
 B

racknell Forest C
ouncil 2016 

9

A
genda Item

 4



  

 

 

 
 

About us 
The Bracknell Forest Local Countryside 
Access Forum (LCAF) was established in 
2003. Bracknell Forest Council, as the 
Borough Highway Authority, has a duty under 
section 94 of the Countryside and Rights of 
Way Act 2000 to establish and facilitate a 
Local Access Forum (LAF). 

LAFs can comprise up to 22 members who 
represent a broad range of interests, 
including landowners, councillors, those who 
earn their living in the countryside, users of 
public rights of way and other relevant 
interests, such as nature conservation. At the 
time of publication LCAF has 9 members, 
with support from a 
number of Bracknell 
Forest Council officers. 

In addition to the twice
-yearly meetings our 
members have the 
opportunity to get 
involved in interesting 
activities such as local 
walks / talks and 
attending national and 
regional LAF 
conferences. 

Join us 
“We are looking 
for people to join 
us who are 
passionate 
about the 
countryside and 
promoting 
access for all.” 

 
These are unpaid 
voluntary positions. While no formal 
qualifications are needed to become a 
member, interested people will ideally 
have a broad range of knowledge, 
interest and experience relevant to 
countryside access.  

To find out more, please visit our website 
where a person specification and an 
application form is available to download. 
Alternatively you can contact us for an 

Foreword 
“We are an independent group of walkers, 
cyclists, horse riders, local Councillors 
and landowners who meet twice a year to 
discuss topical issues about the 
countryside and the rights of way 
network.” 

“We work with the Local Authority and 
other key landowners in the Borough to 
promote open-air recreation and 
enjoyment of the area. Our main goal is to 
have a countryside and rights of way 
network that is accessible to all.” 

“Working with Bracknell Forest Council we 
have produced this leaflet, in the hope 
that in taking the time to find our a little 
more about our work, that you’ll consider 
joining our small friendly team.”   

Peter Radband, Chairman. 

10



Cycleway improvements linked to developments September 2016

The cycle improvements related to the Broadmoor section 106 contributions are for 
improvements to South Road, which will be lit and the surface improved, and for a formal 
crossing across Rackstraw Road to provide access into the Owlsmoor area. There are no 
current plans for a cycle lane on Rackstraw Road itself. The section 106 funding will be 
triggered by the housing development associated with the move of Broadmoor Hospital, rather 
than the hospital itself, and so this is still likely to be some time away. 

Looking at the pinch point referred to by Peter Radband, we believe this is caused by cyclists 
using the edge of carriageway marking as an unofficial cycle lane. Rackstraw Road is a rural 
road with no edge of carriageway drainage or kerbing so, as guidance suggests, a white line is 
painted a metre from the edge of the carriageway to define its edge to road users. As the road 
approaches the new roundabout, which is kerbed, the white line tapers towards the kerb. 
Cyclists using the metre strip on Rackstraw Road as a cycle lane therefore find it narrowing to 
the kerb at this point, which is probably the 'pinch point' Peter refers to. This approach to white 
lining is common practice - the same methodology has been used where Rackstraw Road 
approaches the roundabout junction with Magdelene Road at the bottom of the hill. Our 
accident data show there has been one accident involving a cyclist at either location in the last 
22 years, and this was not related to the edge of carriageway marking. Obviously, the improved 
cycle links via South Road referred to in the paragraph above will provide an alternative cycle 
route connecting Owlsmoor to Bracknell when completed. 

In terms of new cycleways linked to development, I have summarised below the main schemes; 

TRL housing development - cycle links through the development, plus a new section of shared 
used path on the southbound side of Old Wokingham Road 

Amen Corner  North housing development - a new section of shared use path on the eastbound 
section of London Road, from Murrellhill Road to the borough boundary with Wokingham - this 
will form part of the new National Cycle Network route connecting Newbury to Windsor 

Warfield housing development - new cycleways through the development plus a new section of 
shared use path on the eastbound side of Harvest Ride 

Town Centre - a section of shared use path on the eastbound side of Millenium Way, and 
shared use path on The Ring connecting Bond Way to the bus and rail stations 

We recognise cyclists are not as well provided for in the south of the borough compared to 
Bracknell and we are keen to explore options to improve this where path and/or road widths and 
funding allow. If you are aware of any location-specific suggestions for additions to the cycle 
network please let us know. Subject to feasibility and funding, we can then consider the 
schemes. I note in the NAG minutes there is reference to cycle improvements on Wellington 
Road, if you have any more detail on this suggestion it would be helpful. 

Feedback provided to Peter Radband (as part of the Bracknell Forest Neighbourhood Action 
Group) from Phillip Burke, Senior Transport Coordinator at Bracknell Forest Council. 

11

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Last Meeting and Matters Arising
	Minutes

	4 Membership and Recruitment
	7 Access Improvement Works

